
                                                                                                                                                  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The Selectboard and Trustees meet together to discuss and act on joint business. Each board votes separately on action items. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAG  [7:00 PM] 

 
2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES   

   
3. APPROVE AGENDA   

 
4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD   

 
a. Comments from Public on Items Not on Agenda 

          
5. BUSINESS ITEMS  

 
a. Discussion about unified website—Greg Duggan and Rob Paluba 
b. Approve schedule for future joint board meetings—Greg Duggan 
c. Discussion and potential selection of preferred Governance options—George Tyler 
d. Approve RFP for public engagement facilitator for November 2020 vote on governance change—Greg 

Duggan 
e. Discussion and potential action on continuation of Governance Subcommittee—George Tyler 
f. Approve date and prepare for joint board strategic work session—Greg Duggan 

 
6. CONSENT ITEMS                                                                              

 
a. Accept report entitled “Assessment of Critical Non-Compliant Sidewalks, Paths and Crossings”—

Dennis Lutz 
b. Adopt Safety Committee Policy—Greg Duggan 
c. Approval of minutes:  February 6, 2019 (Trustees only, unless changes proposed) 
 

7. READING FILE 
 

a. Board Member Comments 
b. Memo from Dennis Lutz re: Chittenden Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC) Unified Planning 

Work Program (UPWP) for FYE2020 
 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 

a. An executive session is not anticipated 
 

9. ADJOURN       
                   

 
Members of the public are encouraged to speak during the Public to Be Heard agenda item, during a Public Hearing, or, when recognized by the 
Chair or President, during consideration of a specific agenda item. The public will not be permitted to participate when a motion is being discussed 
except when specifically requested by the Chair or President.  This agenda is available in alternative formats upon request. Meetings, like all 
programs and activities of the Village of Essex Junction and the Town of Essex, are accessible to people with disabilities. For information on 
accessibility or this agenda, call the Unified Manager's office at 878-1341. 

 

Certification: _______________________      _________________                       04/05/2019 

VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION TRUSTEES 
TOWN OF ESSEX SELECTBOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
81 Main Street 

Essex Junction, VT 05452 

Tuesday, April 9, 2019 
7:00 PM 

E-mail: manager@essex.org www.essexjunction.org 
www.essex.org 

 

Phone: (802) 878-1341 

http://www.essexjunction.org/
http://www.essex.org/


Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager  

Cc: Caitlin Corless, Essex Free Library Director; Rick Garey, Police Chief; Shannon 

Lunderville, GIS Coordinator; Darby Mayville, Community Relations Assistant; Hannah 

Tracy, Brownell Library Assistant Director 

From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager; Tammy Getchell, Assistant to the Manager; Rob

 Paluba, IT Director 

Re: Update on unified website 

Date: April 5, 2019 

Issue  
The issue is updating the Trustees and Selectboard on progress toward a new website.  

 

Discussion  
CivicPlus, the company building a new Essex community website, has provided a rough draft 

template for review and comments (attached), as well as a proposed color scheme (attached). The 

template can be viewed online at https://vt-essex.webflow.io/; for information about terminology 

on the site, visit http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/.  

 

The staff group working on the website redesign has been discussing the template; the staff 

comments are attached.  

 

The staff website redesign team has collected input from board members and staff about the 

desired features of a new website (attached), which will be taken into consideration during 

website construction.  

 

Staff has also drafted a short survey for residents (attached), which will be made available to the 

public after the April 9 Trustee and Selectboard meeting.  

 

IT Director Rob Paluba has compiled a list of web addresses in use by the Village and Town, 

owned but not in use, and unowned (attached). CivicPlus will need to use one of the web 

addresses to build the template for a new website, although that address does not need to become 

the final address for a new website.  

 

Cost 
None. 

 

Recommendation 
This memo is for informational and discussion purposes.  

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Mood Board

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/ 1/2

#FFFFFF

#464829

#76865F

#BFB48F

#69634E

#476A6F

HOME PAGE LAYOUT >?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Mood Board

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/ 2/2

HOME PAGE LAYOUT >?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 VT-Essex

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home 1/3

LOGO + SEARCH

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

INTERIOR PAGE LAYOUT >< MOOD BOARD ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior
https://vt-essex.webflow.io/
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 VT-Essex

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home 2/3

CAROUSEL 1 CAROUSEL 2

GRAPHIC BUTTONS

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

INTERIOR PAGE LAYOUT >< MOOD BOARD ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior
https://vt-essex.webflow.io/
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 VT-Essex

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home 3/3

QUICK LINKS GRID CALENDAR WITH LIST

LOGO

CONTACT INFO QUICK LINKS HELPFUL LINKS

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

INTERIOR PAGE LAYOUT >< MOOD BOARD ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior
https://vt-essex.webflow.io/
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Interior

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior 1/5

SITE ID + SEARCH

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

< HOME PAGE LAYOUT ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Interior

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior 2/5

PRIMARY CONTENT

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

< HOME PAGE LAYOUT ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Interior

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior 3/5

FEATURE COLUMN

FEATURE LINKS

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

< HOME PAGE LAYOUT ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Interior

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior 4/5

GRAPHIC BUTTONS

LOGO

CONTACT INFO QUICK LINKS HELPFUL LINKS

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

< HOME PAGE LAYOUT ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


4/5/2019 Interior

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/interior 5/5

SIMPLE SITE ID

Sign InMenu

< HOME PAGE LAYOUT ?

https://vt-essex.webflow.io/old-home
http://cp-layout-proposal-guide.webflow.io/


Feedback from Staff Website Redesign Team re: website template 
April 5, 2019 
 
Here is the feedback we received from our web workgroup : 
 
~ Although the colors blend really well, and are soothing neutral colors, we feel that the top color is too 
dark and would like to see a scheme that is perhaps slightly lighter shades of the green (we do realize 
and did convey that it is an ADA compliance thing) 
 
~ The search bar should definitely be similar to either Pierre or Loudoun - staff liked both equally, and 
the transparency effect 
 
~ However there was concern that the search bar should definitely say "How can we help you?" or "How 
do I?", rather than "Search" 
 
~ Photo carousel - staff felt that the area was a little too large, making the user have to scroll too far to 
see the buttons below, can it be a little smaller in height? 
 
~ Graphic Buttons - circles like on the Pierre, SD site but with our colors of course 
 
~ Interior pages - staff felt the content area is quite narrow but would be ok with it of the Feature 
Column can be turned off or on at will 
 
~ Font - staff preferred the larger font presented on such sites as Fayetteville, Pierre, Bayside, and 
Colchester as opposed to the smaller text on the Loudoun and Milton sites 
 



Web Comments—Department Heads 

What features do you like on the existing Town and Village websites?  What do 

you dislike?  What are your suggestions for improvements? 

 The site now is clunky and difficult to navigate. It also isn’t visually appealing.  

 

 TOWN LIKES: 

Easy, intuitive web address (essex.org).  

All Selectboard minutes and packets consolidated in one place.  

Payment Online option right on the front of the home page.  

 

VILLAGE LIKES: 

Intuitive web address.  

Rotating photos of the Village.  

Easy to see Upcoming Events.  

Better (compared to Town) header of relevant links.  

More intuitive (than Town) to find information.  

Options for residents to comment.  

Notify Me’ type of email lists for people to opt into.  

 

TOWN DISLIKES: 

Where to begin … 

Outdated look. Terrible search function. Too many layers and links to find information, 

even for someone who knows what they’re looking for. Too many pages that don’t get 

updated regularly. Outdated pages that are prominent (i.e. 2008 merger info). Too many 

separate websites (e.g. Fire Department). No way for public to provide input. No ‘notify 

me’ type features where people can opt into email notifications. Surcharge for paying 

online through credit card. I’ll stop there for now.  

 

VILLAGE DISLIKES: 

“Latest News” feature goes on too long, not concise. Search function not great. No 

explanation (at least not easy to find) of how the Village exists with the Town. No links to 

the Town website (that I found), even for functions that are shared, or where Village 

residents benefit from also being Town residents (e.g., Indian Brook access). Right-hand 

side of the webpage is too wide, not friendly for reading.  Overall, better than the Town, 

but needs to be refreshed and have a newer, simplified look.  

 



 The Village website has a more inviting design – clean and united colors. It is generally 

usable. It would be helpful to have Village documents like the Annual Report more readily 

accessible. Some parts, like the list of what businesses are in the Village could use some 

clean up – there is a pdf that is comprehensive, but the most prominent info is outdated 

– can the pdf be the only link there? The list of streets is also likely outdated with a date 

from 3 years ago, and something that we reference regularly at Brownell to determine if 

someone is eligible for a Brownell card. Links to Channel 17 meeting footage would also 

be great to include. 

 

The Town site is not great, it’s hard to find information, and the information available is 

sparse. It would be great to use better titles so the search tool provides useful results. 

The employee portal is too prominent, but seem like a great thing to have to be able to 

provide info to employees. It would be great to have an internal site that also included 

names and pictures of employees in each department so we could have a tool to 

recognize fellow colleagues to reference. 

 

 Town – Nothing 

Village – Clean and easier to navigate 

 

 Current Town website is difficult to navigate – thankfully there is a search function. Town 

website seems to be missing historical budget documents.  

 

Village website is more user friendly but fortunately has the search function.  Much better 

with old budget documents and organization 

 

 Currently I think the Village web site works a little better than the towns, you can get 

where you want to go more easily.  For the future enable people to get quickly to the 

page they are looking for.  Post initiatives and good news on page one, and change it 

appropriately. 

Same template layout for all departments 

Dislike – When you deleted files they were still on the site if you searched.  It just removed 

the pointer. 

On-line forms and feedback was really bad. 

Ability to have a lot of flexibility on content was somewhat poor… (you could not put a 

picture where you wanted without getting into the html. 

 

 The Village website is more visually appealing and navigable.  The Town’s gets lower 
marks - very outdated.  We like the Colchester website. 



 

 Overall, I think the Town’s website is user friendly, but it could be better organized.  I also 
think it looks outdated. 
 

 It works well as set up; better notification of office closings and/or holidays should be on 

the first/front page of the website 

 

 Because there is so much on the site, library resources often get lost and it is more difficult 

for our library patrons to find what they are looking for. Having so many menus and drop-

downs, patrons have complained that they have been redirected to other town 

departments when they simply wanted to access our electronic books or our library 

catalog. Having a separate library page (without the additional menus) would make it 

much easier for the public to access our resources and for the librarians to best be able 

to organize our information. 

What website features are critical for your department? 

 I would love a Town and Village wide website that is only accessible by staff. I envision 

the intranet as the central hub for open enrollment forms, HR Forms, benefit info, 

policies, etc.  unlike the S:Drive the intranet would only be editable by select individuals 

which could help prevent unauthorized changes or movement of files. 

 

 Contact info. Easy-to-find info about Selectboard and Trustees (calendar, agendas, 

packets, minutes). Opt-in features for residents to get updates on certain 

topics/boards/projects.  Also, one intranet portal on one website for Village and Town 

employees to use to share reference documents, policies, forms, etc.  

 

 We launched a new website in 2018 and it includes all the features we found important, 

or important to the public we serve. This site was developed after a lot of staff 

brainstorming, testing within staff, and then testing with library volunteers and then 

testing with the public. Most difficult was making sure we avoided librarian lingo and used 

words and phrases that were clear to our audience – the public. We have a number of 

ways to get to different information. We also wanted to keep the interface clean so the 

public’s eyes can seek out the information they are looking for.  

 

 Ease of administration  

 

 Document storage and organizational features for audits, budgets, policies, and possible 

regular financial reports 



Notification section for important due dates 

Ability for citizens to fill out AND SUBMIT via the web request forms (Water/Sewer ACH, 

final water readings, Tax ACH form, etc.)  

 

 Ease of access to information. 

 

Stormwater required postings, annual reports, etc. 

 

 It is critical that people find what they are looking for more easily.  Better navigability. 

 

 Ensuring we have a place to post documents – the annual report, SWMP, etc. all need to 

be posted on our website. 

 

 The Town of Essex Website department features are most critical in regards to each 

separate department’s information. 

 

 Easy to navigate and obtain/find information in a logical and well laid out manner. Staff 

and areas of  staff responsibility; ability to handle complaints and define the issue 

accurately  (i.e., location of problem, type of issue), easy to update and change; use of 

search feature that would enable customer to get to the area they are looking for quickly; 

ability to quickly provide information in emergencies. 

 

 It is essential that the library has the ability to maintain and edit its own page as changes 

often need to be made immediately and as our staff has experience and training in 

organizing information to make resources readily available to patrons. 

 

What website features would be nice to have for your department?  

 An applicant tracking system with the ability for individuals to apply online would also be 

very helpful. 

 

 The ability for residents to search if they live in the Town or the Village. 

 

 Document repository for people to access current and previous budgets, audits, policies, 

water/sewer rates, tax rates 

FAQ for common finance questions 

Information about how to obtain a copy of your tax bill or water/sewer bill 



Due date information for bills  

Potentially have one finance page instead of two (one village and one town) 

 

 A direct link to information for the department rather than two or three clicks to get 

there. 

 

 Ability to post video, Ability to have good on-line forms 

Ability to accept payment on-line 

 

 The website features that are currently disclosed are beneficial and adequate. 

 

 We could also go the route of greater transparency, ie: people could access all of our 

permits and other records through the website.  Colchester did this (at enormous 

expense). 

 

 Having a list of common questions answered.  For example, Victor, NY has a list of 

questions like What should I do if my mailbox is damaged during plowing?  We have this 

for some departments, but I think it would be convenient to do for PW.  Adding an area 

for current or planned construction projects.  

 

 Our biggest concern and request is that we be able to maintain the page ourselves.   

What are some must-have features for the website as a whole?   

 Anything that can free up staff time that is typically spent working with the public. This 

would include the ability for residents to pay bills, download property tax bills, via water 

bills, sign up for rec programs, etc. 

 

 Emergency response and other mass notification systems. 

 

 A meeting calendar, more in demand public documents like the annual reports and public 

meeting minutes, the libraries and rec should have separate sites not gummed up by the 

municipal template so the public can find the activities and services they are looking for 

without getting lost, which is the case for so many all-inclusive municipal sites. Having the 

Libraries and Rec Departments get links from the top of the Village site is good design as 

that would immediately serve the people looking for these services instead of municipal 

business like paying tax bills, FAQs for each department would be great. Learning that it 

takes EJPW 4 hours to complete a plow route would do a lot to back the public off from 



the idea that Village plows are hiding around the corner waiting until someone finishes 

clearing their driveway to dump a berm of snow at the end. 

 

 Ease of administration 

Secure 

ADA complaint  

 

 Easier to navigate, more intuitive, fewer clicks to get from home page to destination page 

 

 Colourful, not busy, easy to navigate, populates quickly. 

 

 Mandatory postings 

 

 Better navigability.  More appealing visually.  
 

 Staff Directory, How Do I? function (Victor NY Website)  Calendar of events should be one 
calendar with a function to filter out what it is that you’re looking for (i.e. Parks and Rec, 
Town or Village).  I also like the idea of adding community events to the Calendar like the 
Village does.  The Town only has meetings posted on the calendar.  Agenda and meeting 
center on the Milton site is a great way to filter what you’re looking for.  Allowing 
residents to create accounts and being able to customize their settings to what they want 
like viewing/paying water bill, receiving alerts for the calendar, or being notified of an 
emergency alert. Etc. 
 

 The current website features are the must-have’s for the website. 

 

 The website should be well organized, not overcrowded, and it should be visually 

appealing. 

 

What do you want to see the unified website achieve? 

 Uniformity with their being one central location for all Town and Village sites. Ease of use 

by Residents and staff alike. 

 

 Send the message of one community. Make it easier for staff to update and maintain one 

website. Better transparency.  

 

 And then, in no particular order … One look, one feel, one framework that still allows 

Town and Village to differentiate themselves, and allows departments to have more 



freedom to update their webpages (within a certain framework). Emergency 

notifications. Notify Me option for boards, committees, commissions, topics, etc. when 

people want specific information. Better story about what Essex and Essex Junction are, 

for residents and businesses (existing and prospective). Better customer service for 

paying bills, pulling permits, getting applications – basically, more online functionality for 

municipal services. Better organization, with easier-to-find information and more 

intuitive structure. More frequent updates of information. Option for residents to provide 

feedback. Easy to find contact info. One employee portal for all employees. 

Potentially harder options: GIS layers that residents can use (see Westford, Jericho, VT 

Agency of Natural Resources) for zoning, planning, exploring their community. Map (or at 

least a list) showing where people have pulled applications for planning and zoning 

permits. Fillable forms and online application options for all of our applications. 

 

 The ability for citizens to find information easily, preferably without using a search tools. 

And links to similar information from the Town site to the Village site, and the reverse, 

like Employment Opportunities. 

 

 A clean site that is easy to navigate that is responsive and with a search function that truly 

searches all pages for all pages.   

 

 A consistent template for all municipal departments 

 

 A place where people can go to easily get information about living, working, or doing 

business in Essex.   

 

 Simple landing page.  Other comments provided to IT as part of earlier poll on website 

company: 

 

 After reviewing the [sample] sites, one more alignment observation;  Whatever is 

chosen, we have enough Town Village confusion in this community.   My thought 

for consideration is that the first view of any Village Town link is a unified page 

with three blocks: 1) Unified 2) Village 3) Town that takes you to your next page. 

Each area is color coded to remind you which section of the changing government 

structure you are in.  (Victory NY was a town web site with a Village link…nothing 

special)   Under unified can be departments like PD, Senior Bus, Unified Managers 

Office, Alignment Committee, Joint board meetings, governance, Economic 

Development business development, etc., etc.  It shows progress where progress 

is made and provides ready access. 



 

 Consistent messaging to residents and user friendly. 

 

 Uniformity, consistency, and be user friendly. 

 

 I hope we develop a beautiful, informative, and accessible website that will not only 

provide citizens with information but will also serve as an advertisement or pamphlet for 

our community. When people are looking to move to an area, they may look at a town’s 

website. Having a great website may mean attracting more people to want to be part of 

our community and contribute to our community. 

 

Other Comments: 

 The websites are primarily in place to serve the public. Let’s do an online survey on both 

websites to get input from residents on what they like/don’t like and what functionality 

they want from their websites. 

 

 We are currently designing and building the CivicReady platform that will allow for mass 

notifications.  Once this is complete this will address any shortcomings we have currently. 

 

 Municipal alert system for notices and emergencies.  This is already in the proposed 

updated website and emergency notification through the state notification system. 

 

 Many residents comment that they had to search both websites to find what they were 

looking for and they just want to get what they need quickly. 

 

 The website needs to be actively managed with central control/overview over content.  

Giving each department a totally “free-hand” in determining content can lead to a 

webpage where the only common element is the opening page.  There needs to be a 

common thread through the website and common standards or it will become a collection 

of disjointed websites under one common header. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Web Comments—Board Members 

What features do you like on the existing Town and Village websites?  What do 

you dislike? 

 Village Likes: The number and type of categories on the greenish colored ribbon 

underneath the logo; “Connect with the Trustees” button; Red links at the top (mostly 

the categories); Slideshow of pictures; Highlighted upcoming events; News on the front 

of the page; See Click Fix widget; Channel 17 Widget; The website is developed and hosted 

by a local (Essex) company which is carbon-offset; Website could facilitate public 

comments; Looks and flows like a more modern site; It is constantly updated and you can 

clearly find the updates. 

Village Dislikes: Search is difficult to find items. 

Town Likes: Calendar is easy to find; Easy to make payments online. 

Town Dislikes: Categories on the left and upper right are too broad and most 

subcategories then have their own subcategories further making it difficult to find 

content; Picture on the home page never changes; Home page is very generic with 

nothing engaging; Calendar is not as informative as the Village’s “Upcoming Events”; See 

Click Fix is just a link and not a widget to see what others have posted; “Quick Links” look 

like clipart; Website is designed and hosted by a national company which doesn’t care 

about Essex or have a stake in Essex’s success, we are a transaction like making a purchase 

at Wal-Mart; It does not appear the Town’s website is updated frequently since the home 

page never changes beyond the month in the calendar; All-in-all the Town site requires 

many more clicks to get to content than the Village’s. 

 Need a more robust search feature, because it’s difficult to find anything by a keyword or 

two. 

 

 This is a pretty deep question. Generally I think the Village website’s structure and 

mechanics are pretty good, although perhaps slightly outdated. The overall open and 

accessible look with scroll-down community news and events on the front page is a good 

idea. We could perhaps make better use of its internal pages by removing outdated 

content and reorganizing the remaining content. For example, I would like to see an 

improved community development page where ongoing and prospective projects are 

displayed. I would also like to see a user-friendly explanation of the development and 

zoning process. 

 



The Town website with its cookie cutter buttons and photomontage scenery scroll is 

straight from the 1990s. Don’t have the “Welcome to Essex …”  dialogue dominate the 

page. It’s silly. The overall look of the front page suggests it was designed to attract people 

from out of state who may be considering moving here or starting a business here. Build 

a site for people who live here. Put news and community events on the front page and 

arrange the interior content for the average Essex citizen. I’m sure there are lots of up-

to-date examples of small municipal websites that can serve as models. As I understand 

it, you’ve chosen CivicPlus as your provider. I think they do a very nice job and we’ll all be 

pleased with the result  

 

But … whatever you do, please get rid of the phrase “Nestled between the Green 

Mountains and Lake Champlain …”  Nestled? What is this, a high school creative writing 

contest?  

 

 The current website looks very outdated and in dire need of a refresh. 

 

The search function needs to be greatly improved so documents can be more easily 

found. 

What do you want to see the unified website achieve? 

 At this point I don’t want one website for both communities. 

 

 Website should communicate that we are all members of one town.  The Village and other 

districts (such as the school district) should have buttons on the homepage that link to 

other pages/sites as necessary.  The medium IS the message. 

 

 I think a unified website would be a fine idea for a unified community. Right now, Essex 

Junction is a separate municipal corporation from Essex Town. We can’t simply gloss over 

those boundaries. I understand what you’re trying to achieve. I understand the tedium of 

posting the same news on two different sites, when you could just be posting it once, for 

example. But I think the elected bodies must be the initiators and enablers of this concept, 

not the staff at 81 Main St. I’m open to having a discussion of how we can better align the 

two sites and with working with staff to bring it to fruition, but I think it has implications 

beyond simple communication technology updates and staff convenience.  We’ve got a 

bunch of new people coming on to our elected boards right now. I think it might be a good 

idea to let them get settled in for a while and then have us all mutually explore the idea 

of a unified website.  



 The website should assist our ability to promote economic development.  I would 

propose we only update the Town’s website as a piolet project to make sure folks are 

happy with it.  Make updates & improvements over the next year.  Then we can see if 

the new website could also include the Village and their specific needs.  

What are features that you consider critical and necessary for the website to 

have?  What types of information must the website be providing? 

 Everything in the green ribbon and upper right corner of the Village’s website is critical 

and necessary. It is more than just various boards/committees minutes and agenda but a 

way to engage the community (residents, businesses, researchers, etc.) into who and 

what we as a community are and what we do. It should be a statement of our philosophy 

on community engagement and community development and not just a way to satisfy 

open meeting laws.  

 

 Photos are critical.  The website must link to meeting packets, additions to that packet 

made at meetings, minutes, etc. 

 

 All the stuff that’s presently on the two sites. I think it’s mainly about the arrangement 

and accessibility of the content. A major area of improvement would be more focus on 

community development: impending and ongoing projects, how applications are 

approved, how the municipal plan affects the application review process, etc. I think this 

is one area where the public has lots of questions and we don’t provide succinct answers.    

Mainly – the site should be as flexible as possible for content revision. What’s important 

to us now might not be so important a few years from now.  

What are features that you think may not be critical, but would be nice to see on 

the website? 

 I don’t know. 

 

 Digitize every document that contains ordinances, policies, etc. 

 

 Find a way to give more prominence to the elected boards (select board and trustees) 

rather than just blending them in with all the other boards and committees. There’s a 

huge difference in their roles and degree of influence. Some municipal sites have a 

Mayor’s corner or a city council news sidebar which give overviews of current issues the 

elected officials are dealing with.   

 



 It would be great if it had the ability to have a very controlled two-way communication 

function for the public and boards to use. 

 

The home page should have a place to show inviting pictures of our community that 

scroll automatically. 

 

The home page should have an obvious place for current news to be posted that require 

only one click to open the news documents. 

 

Please provide any additional suggestions. 

 I would hate to see the Village’s website look and flow like the Town’s.  

 

 Again, if you just want to update the Town site, then go for it. But if you want to integrate 

the town and village sites – I’m not totally opposed to the idea -- I think we need to have 

more board-level discussion.  

 

 



 

 

WEBSITE SURVEY - RESIDENTS 

The Village of Essex Junction and the Town of Essex are considering changes to the Town and Village 

websites, and are seeking feedback from anyone who may visit the websites. Thank you for your input.  

 

1. Would you like to see a redesigned website for the Village of Essex Junction? 

(www.essexjunction.org) 

[] Yes 

[] No 

[] Unsure 

 

2. Would you like to see a redesigned website for the Town of Essex? (www.essex.org) 

[] Yes 

[] No 

[] Unsure 

 

3. Would you prefer to have A) one home page for the entire Essex community, from which you 

can then access Town, Village, and unified municipal government functions; or B) separate 

websites for the Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction municipalities? 

[] One home page 

[] Separate Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction websites 

 

4. What features would you like to see on your municipal website? Check all that apply.  

 

[] Functional search feature 

[] Electronic notifications for board/committee meetings, emergencies, events, etc.  

[] Online bill-paying 

[] Online application/registration forms (e.g. building permit, recreation programs, etc.) 

[] Cohesive look and feel on all pages  

[] Comment sections 

[] Calendar of upcoming meetings and events 

[] List of news and upcoming events 

[] Links to social media 

[] Other (please specify, 300 characters): _____ 

 

http://www.essexjunction.org/
http://www.essex.org/


 

 

5. Please provide any additional comments the Town and Village should consider when developing 

a new website(s). (1,000 characters) 

 

 

6. Do you live in the  

[] Village of Essex Junction 

[] Town of Essex outside the Village 

[] Neither 

[] Unsure 

 

7. How old are you?  

[] Under 18 

[] 18 – 29 

[] 30 – 49 

[] 50 – 64 

[] 65+ 

 

8. Would you be interested in serving on a focus group for a new website(s)? If so, please provide 

the following information:  

[] No 

[] Yes 

Name: _________ 

Email: _________ 

Phone: ________ 

I am a (check all that apply): 

[] Essex resident (Village or Town outside the Village) 

[] Essex business owner (Village or Town outside the Village) 

[] I work in Essex but live elsewhere 

[] Prospective Essex resident (Village or Town outside the Village) 

[] Prospective Essex business owner (Village or Town outside the Village) 

[] Other (please specify): __________ 



Memorandum 
 
To:  Website Workgroup 

From:  Robert Paluba, IT Director  
Re:  Domain Names for Town and Village Websites 
Date:  April 5, 2019 

 
Below is a list of domains that are available for purchase or currently owned by the Town, Village, or an 
external group working with either the Town or Village. 
 

 Domains Currently Owned: In Use  
o  Internally Owned 

 Essex.org  

 Essexjunction.org 

 EssexFreeLibrary.org 

 BrownellLibrary.org 

 EPDVT.org 

 Ejrp.org 

 essexrec.org 

 pysaessex.org 

 essexhalf.com 

 essexfire.com  

 essexjctfire.org 

 essexcjc.org  

 essexvtseniors.org 

o Externally Owned or Owner Unknown 
 heartandsoulofessex.org  

 Owner unknown 

 Hosted using Weebly 

 essexmemorialdayparade.com  

 Owned by private citizen: Caroline Ashley 

 EssexCommunityHistoricalSociety.org  

 Owner Unknown 

 Hosted using Steadfast Communications 

 

 Domains Currently Owned: Unused 
o EssexVT.org  

 Could be used for new website 

 Short URL 

o MyEssex.org 

 Could be used for new website 

 Short URL 

o Brownelllibrary.com 

o EssexFreeLibrary.com 

o EssexFreeLibrary.net 

o EssexParksAndRec.com 

o EssexParksAndRec.org 



o EssexVermont.org 

o EssexVT.biz 

o EssexVT.net 

 

 Available Unowned Domains 

o essexcommunities.org 
 $21/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 Characters Long 

o Essex-community.org  

 $21/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 Characters Long 

 Hyphenated URL 

o ouressexcommunity.org 

 $21/yr. for basic registration  

 Over 15 Characters Long 

o essexcommunity.net 
 $20/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o myessexcommunity.org 
 $21/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o myessexcommunity.net 
 $20/yr. for basic registration 
 Over 15 characters long 

o youressexcommunity.net 
 $20/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o essexjunction.net 

 $35/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o essex-junction.com 

 $35/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o essexjunction.info 

 $35/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

o myessexjunction.com 

 $35/yr. for basic registration 

 Over 15 characters long 

 
 



Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager  

From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager; Sarah Macy, Assistant Village Manager/Finance

 Director  

Re: Selectboard and Trustee joint meeting schedule 2019-2020 

Date: April 4, 2019 

Issue  
The issue is for the Trustees and Selectboard to approve a joint meeting schedule for 2019-2020.  

 

Discussion  
The Trustees and Selectboard have an increasing number of issues to deal with on a joint basis, 

including consolidated departments, intertwined budgets, town-wide projects and contracts like 

paving and storm water, and a November 2020 vote on governance. To handle those issues 

jointly, the Trustees and Selectboard should agree to a schedule that best allows the boards and 

the staff of the Village of Essex Junction and Town of Essex to function efficiently and 

effectively.  

 

Currently, the boards have scheduled joint meetings on the first Wednesday of every other 

month. The Selectboard typically meets the first and third Mondays of each month. The Trustees 

typically meet the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month. The current schedule is beginning 

to pose challenges to efficient operations and decision-making. Information that should be 

reviewed by both boards is either delayed until a joint meeting, or staff needs to attend separate 

board meetings to present the same information. Similarly, decisions are either delayed, or made 

separately by each board without having joint discussions.  

 

To remedy the challenges of joint decision-making, staff is proposing options for a revised 

schedule. A full schedule for each option is attached, as is a four-month calendar sample to help 

with visualization. 

 

OPTION 1 – Status quo (2.5 meetings per month for boards, 4.5 for staff) 

1st Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) 

1st Wednesday (every other month) = Joint boards (7 p.m.) 

2nd Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) 

3rd Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) 

4th Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) 

 

This schedule can make it difficult for the boards to review certain materials in a timely 

manner, and only allows for a limited number joint meetings prior to a November 2020 

governance vote.  

 

OPTION 2 – Keep existing schedule and have a joint meeting every month (3 meetings per 

month for boards, 5 for staff) 

1st Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) 

1st Wednesday = Joint boards (7 p.m.) 

2nd Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) 

3rd Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) 



4th Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) 

 

This schedule creates an additional meeting every month, which take staff time for 

preparation, distribution of packets, etc. Parking conflicts would occur every other month 

at 2 Lincoln Street because of the First Wednesday series at Brownell Library, unless the 

boards want to meet at a different location.  

 

OPTION 3 – Same Selectboard and Trustee schedule, with two of the meetings including joint 

business for both boards (3 meetings per month for boards, 4 for staff).  

 

1st Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) & Joint boards (7:30 p.m.) 

2nd Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) 

3rd Monday = Selectboard (7 p.m.) 

4th Tuesday = Trustees (6:30 p.m.) & Joint boards (7 p.m.) 

 

On joint meeting nights, the regularly-scheduled board can meet individually for 30 or 45 

minutes to conduct board-specific business. Staff can also strive to put more materials on 

consent agenda to streamline discussion whenever possible. As much as deadlines allow, 

staff would bring information and decisions about joint functions to joint board meetings. 

The more frequent joint meetings will also allow the boards to discuss issues of 

governance more regularly.  

 

Cost  
None.  

 

Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Trustees and Selectboard approve Option 3 for the meeting schedule 

for 2019-2020. 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD MEETING SCHEDULE - Options
2019-2020

DAY DATE

OPTION 1                                     
Status quo

OPTION 2                                     
More standalone joint meetings

OPTION 3                                                  
More joint meetings on regular board 

schedule 
Tuesday 4/9/2019 Joint boards Joint boards Joint boards
Monday 4/15/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 4/23/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Wednesday 5/1/2019 Joint boards
Monday 5/6/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Tuesday 5/14/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 5/20/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 5/28/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 6/3/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Wednesday 6/5/2019 Joint boards Joint boards
Tuesday 6/11/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 6/17/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 6/25/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Wednesday 7/3/2019 Joint boards
Tuesday 7/9/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 7/15/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Tuesday 7/23/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 8/5/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Wednesday 8/7/2019 Joint boards Joint boards
Tuesday 8/13/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 8/19/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 8/27/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Wednesday 9/4/2019 Joint boards
Monday 9/9/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Tuesday 9/10/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 9/23/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 9/24/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Wednesday 10/2/2019 Joint boards Joint boards
Monday 10/7/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Tuesday 10/8/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 10/28/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 10/29/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 11/4/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Wednesday 11/6/2019 Joint boards
Tuesday 11/12/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 11/18/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 11/26/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 12/2/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Wednesday 12/4/2019 Joint boards Joint boards
Tuesday 12/10/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 12/16/2019 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 12/17/2019 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Thursday 1/2/2020 Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget)
Monday 1/6/2020 Selectboard (budget & regular) Selectboard (budget & regular) Selectboard (budget) & Joint boards
Wednesday 1/8/2020 Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget)
Monday 1/13/2020 Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget) Selectboard (budget)
Tuesday 1/14/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Wednesday 1/15/2020 Joint boards
Tuesday 1/21/2020 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 1/28/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 2/3/2020 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Wednesday 2/5/2020 Joint boards
Tuesday 2/11/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees



Tuesday 2/18/2020 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 2/25/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Monday 3/2/2020 Selectboard/TOWN MEETING Selectboard/TOWN MEETING Selectboard/TOWN MEETING
Wednesday 3/4/2020 Joint boards
Tuesday 3/10/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees
Monday 3/16/2020 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard
Tuesday 3/24/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees & Joint boards
Wednesday 4/1/2020 Trustees/VILLAGE MEETING Trustees/VILLAGE MEETING Trustees/VILLAGE MEETING
Monday 4/6/2020 Selectboard Selectboard Selectboard & Joint boards
Tuesday 4/14/2020 Trustees Trustees Trustees

NOTES:

Option 3 - Trustees start at 6:30 p.m., Selectboard at 7 p.m., Joint 30 (or 45) minutes later
Option 2 - Trustees start at 6:30 p.m., Selectboard at 7 p.m., Joint at 7 p.m.
Option 1 - Trustees start at 6:30 p.m., Selectboard at 7 p.m., Joint at 7 p.m.

Jan. 15, 2020 - Different than normal 1st Wednesday schedule to accommodate holiday and Selectboard budget schedule
Dec. 17, 2019 - Different than normal 4th Tuesday for Trustees to accommodate holiday.
Oct. 28-29, 2019 - Evan and Greg at ICMA National Conference Oct. 21-22, the regularly scheduled meeting dates
July 15, 2019 - Only one July meeting for Selectboard



1 3/29/2019 1:31 PMSarah Macy

April 2019

Mar 31 Apr 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

2 3/29/2019 1:31 PMSarah Macy

May 2019

Apr 28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 Jun 1

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

3 3/29/2019 1:31 PMSarah Macy

June 2019

26 27 28 29 30 31 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 1 2 3 4 5 6

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

4 3/29/2019 1:31 PMSarah Macy

July 2019

Jun 30 Jul 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 Aug 1 2 3

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

Option 1: Status Quo

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard
Selectboard

Trustees

Joint Boards

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Joint Boards



1 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

April 2019

Mar 31 Apr 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

2 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

May 2019

Apr 28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 Jun 1

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

3 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

June 2019

26 27 28 29 30 31 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 1 2 3 4 5 6

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

4 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

July 2019

Jun 30 Jul 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 Aug 1 2 3

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

Option 2: More Standalone Joint Meetings 

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

Selectboard

SelectboardTrustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Trustees

Joint Boards

Joint Boards

Joint Boards

Joint Boards



1 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

April 2019

Mar 31 Apr 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

2 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

May 2019

Apr 28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 Jun 1

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

3 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

June 2019

26 27 28 29 30 31 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 1 2 3 4 5 6

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

4 3/29/2019 1:52 PMSarah Macy

July 2019

Jun 30 Jul 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 Aug 1 2 3

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

Option 3: More joint meetings added on to regular board meetings

Selectboard

Selectboard

SLB & Joint

Selectboard

SLB & Joint

SLB & Joint

Selectboard

Trustees 
& Joint

Trustees

Trustees 
& Joint

Trustees

Trustees

Joint Boards

Trustees 
& Joint

Trustees 
& Joint











Questions for Dan Richardson from the Essex Junction/Essex Town Governance Subcommittee   3.18.19 

 

Questions About Charters 

Question 1: Please explain the difference between the original ‘charter’ for the Town of Essex, which was issued by the 

British Crown in the 1750s (?) and the current ‘charter’ contained in Vermont code.  

Answer: This is an interesting constitutional question.  The original British charters were effectively land grants 

and authorizations to form townships and other local governments granted by the sovereign at the time, Great 

Britain.  These obviously had an impact on settlement patterns, original incorporation lines, names, and early 

government.  But, the original Vermont constitution in 1777 expressly cut off British sovereignty, and by extension, 

the original British charters and land grants.  The Vermont Constitution took that original British sovereignty and 

transferred it into the newly formed state of Vermont.  This action largely ended the legal authority of the original 

British charters.  Since the first Vermont Constitution, authority to constitute towns has vested in the General 

Assembly, which has done so through statute.  (See Vermont Const. Ch. II § 6.)  In addition, the Constitution has been 

interpreted to give the Legislature complete authority over the municipalities.  Sargent v. Clark, 83 Vt. 523 (1910).  It 

is under this broad grant of authority that the legislature has allowed various municipalities to adopt charters.  These 

modern charters are not foundational or incorporation documents, but they are akin to corporate bylaws.  Charter 

provisions can take several forms: there are governmental structure provisions (allowing different forms of 

government than the default provisions in title 24); empowerment statutes that give towns the authority to provide 

certain services; and other specific grants of power to regulate or to tax.  In effect, charters are just laws that the 

legislature has passed that apply to single municipalities, rather than general grants of power.  For example, a town 

may want to ban plastic bags from stores within its boundary, under the general statutory law, the town cannot do 

this, but with a lawfully promulgated charter provision, that town could gain such a power, but it would be specific 

and limited to the town with the charter provision.   

Question 2: We’re strongly considering an option for a single-charter community. We envision this would entail 

dissolving both existing charters (Essex Junction’s and Essex Town’s) and replacing them with a new charter (Essex 

Town?) so as to avoid the politically troubling impression that the Town is ‘swallowing up’ the Village. Does this make 

sense? Would the Legislature approve this maneuver? Is there a more reasonable alternative?  

Answer:  I think this is a reasonable approach and would not, on its face raise issues with the legislature.  It makes 

sense in that you are creating a new entity.  I think if the change had the strong support of the voters, then the 

legislative reception would be positive.  This is a straightforward approach that would presumably take best from the 

two prior charters and add provisions that made sense for the newly merged entity. 

Question 3: Naming the newly unified community has been a confounding issue of past merger efforts, and has 

produced some awkward results (in 2007, the ‘Town of Essex Junction’ was proposed, which equally disappointed 

everyone). If we were to revise or replace the existing Essex Town Charter with a new ‘Essex Town’ charter, is there a 

way to maintain a remnant of the name ‘Essex Junction’?   

Answer: Yes, Essex Junction could survive as an unincorporated village within the Town.  There are examples of this 

throughout the state.  Middlesex for example has four unincorporated villages, Middlesex Village, Middlesex Center, 

Wrightsville, and Putnamville, which have state highway signage but no distinct political identity from the town.  This 

identity could be further preserved in the charter and through public signage sponsored by the newly created town.   

 

Questions about Special Districts 

Question 1: Must a special district be temporary or can it be permanent? 



Answer: It can be permanent, and it often is.  Think about solid waste, utility, and fire districts that last for a 

generation or longer.  Special districts should exist so long as the need remains. 

Question 2: (with multiple sub-questions)  

To buffer the tax impacts of consolidating the Village and Town budgets and to retain a degree of control over local 

services, we would like to consider a governance model that consolidates all municipal services into one budget except 

for libraries and recreation departments. Taxpayers in the ‘Village District’ (the former Village) would only be required to 

pay for their own library and recreation departments; taxpayers of the ‘Center District’ (the former Town Outside the 

Village) would be required to pay the full cost of their own library and recreation departments. 

We believe the best way to achieve this would be to establish two cultural districts within the consolidated community. 

Each cultural district would develop a budget for its own library and recreation departments, and recommend that 

budget to the Town governing board. The Town governing board would automatically incorporate the recommended 

budgets into the Town general fund budget as long as the recommended budgets did not exceed a previously agreed 

upon percentage increase. The community-wide tax rate for Town property owners would be adjusted to account for 

the cost of their local cultural district.   

The budget-setting authority for each cultural district could be one of the following: (a) a board of volunteers from each 

cultural district appointed by the Town governing board (similar to a planning commission); (b) a board of volunteers 

elected by voters within each cultural district; (c) the members of the Town governing board who live in and represent 

the former Village and Town Outside the Village districts (this would only work in a voting district governance model).  

Questions: (A) Is this an appropriate and feasible use of the ‘special district’ concept in local government? (B) Is one of 

the budget-setting authority models preferable over the others? (C) Is there a better way to maintain a degree of 

separation and control over some municipal services within an otherwise consolidated community (other than 

maintaining the present incorporated village model)? 

Answer: 

A) This is a feasible use of a special district, but it sounds less like a special district and more like a special board 

within the Town Government.  If that is the case, then a special district may not be necessary.  As I indicate 

below, I think this should really come down to a question of size and efficiency. 

B) I think the model that vests the ultimate budget making authority with the primarily legislative body 

(selectboard/council) is the wisest approach as it does not get into whether a Board can delegate its budget 

and taxing authority.  Within that recommendation, though, I think that creating an elected cultural board for 

the village and another for the TOV would ensure that the process had popular support and citizen 

involvement.  As an alternative, there is statutory authority that gives libraries the right to make their own 

budgets and seek public funds.  Along those lines, would be to create the cultural boards for the village and 

the TOV and allow each to make their budgets and put them separately before the voters.  TOV voters would 

vote on the TOV cultural budget, and the village voters would vote on the village cultural budget.  This would 

continue a special assessment for the two areas on their tax bills, but I believe based on the research that I did 

last fall that this would be workable option. 

C) Yes, I think the option described above could serve as a model.  I think this depends on the number of services 

that you intend to keep separate.  There is a tipping point in the efficiency of having each model, and I would 

recommend that you think of it roughly like this: 

  



 

Number of Separate 
Services 

General Size of Services 
compared to the overall 

budget 

Recommended Municipal 
Entity 

 
2-4 

 
Relatively smaller 

Single Municipal entity 
with separate boards of 
varying authority 

5-10 Larger or disproportionate 
for one portion of the 

municipality 

Special District for the 
disproportionate services 

 
11 or more 

 
Major Services 

Separate municipalities or 
special district  

 

This is just a rough model, but you should think of the first two columns as the two factors driving the 

recommendation in column three.  For example, in the first row, if you have a limited number of separate services 

and those services represent a relatively small portion of the overall municipal budget, then having those services 

within a single municipal corporation is a reasonable model.  As either the number of services or the proportionate 

size of the budget grows, then so does the need for a progressively more independent and complicated governmental 

structure to oversee and apply those services becomes.  Within these rough transitional lines, there are a wide 

number of variations.  The key is look at the specific facts driving the situation.   

To that end, I would recommend that you ask yourself a series of key questions: 

What services are being kept separate? 

How many services are separate in ratio to those that are or would be merged? 

What is the size of the budget to be kept separate and how does it compare to the merged budget? 

How sustainable would a separate board be to oversee these services and set a budget?   

How many separate employees or professional staff are associated with the services?   

Are those staff members dedicated to the services or do they work with other departments? 

Are these services and/or needs likely to change or merge between the village and TOV in the next 10 years? 

Why are they being kept separate? 

How do they function now?   

How important is the separation to the voters?   

 

I do not mean this list to be exclusive.  You should also consider whether there are any other factors driving the 

separation of services or other pressures likely to exist and which should be taken into account when planning for 

these services. 



Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager  

From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager 

Re: Approval of RFP for public engagement facilitator for November 2020 vote on

 governance change  

Date: April 5, 2019 

Issue  
The issue is whether the Trustees and Selectboard will authorize staff to issue a request for 

proposals (RFP) for a public engagement facilitator in preparation for a November 2020 vote on 

governance. 

 

Discussion  
The Trustees and Selectboard would like to hold a vote on governance change in November 

2020. The Governance Subcommittee of the boards has researched potential governance change 

options, and narrowed the list of preferred options to three. The Trustees and Selectboard will 

discuss the Governance Subcommittee’s report and recommendations on April 9.  

 

Prior to having a town-wide vote in November 2020, the boards have expressed a desire for a 

significant public engagement effort that would allow residents to review and shape the 

governance change options. The ultimate goal of the public engagement would be to present 

voters with the most desirable governance structure for the entire Essex community.  

 

To that end, the boards may want to hire a professional who specializes in facilitation, 

engagement, and public outreach.  

 

A draft RFP is attached for review. Once the boards are satisfied with the RFP, staff can issue the 

RFP and select a specialist to oversee the public engagement efforts leading up to a November 

2020 vote on governance change.  

 

Cost  
It is estimated to cost $14,000 to hire a public engagement facilitator for the project.  

 

Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Trustees/Selectboard authorize staff to issue a request for proposals 

for a public engagement facilitator in preparation for a November 2020 vote on governance. 



 

1 
 

 

 
 

Village of Essex Junction 

Town of Essex, Vermont 
 

Request for Proposals 
Public engagement effort about potential governance changes in 

Essex Junction and Essex 
 

Issued: April 10, 2019 

Proposals due: 4:30 p.m., April 26, 2019 

 

OVERVIEW 

The Village of Essex Junction and the Town of Essex are seeking a professional, experienced 

facilitator(s) to engage residents on whether and how to make changes to the governing 

structures in the two municipalities.  

 

The facilitator(s) will organize and oversee a public engagement process that reaches as many 

residents as possible and collects input on the best governing structure for the entire community. 

The process will focus on three potential governance change options being considered by the 

Essex Junction Board of Trustees and Town of Essex Selectboard. Through the engagement 

process, the public will vet the three options and help craft and select one preferred option. 

Residents will then vote in November 2020 on whether or not to accept the proposed governance 

option.  

 

The facilitator(s) will produce a report by November 1, 2019 that details the results of the 

engagement process and recommends a final governance option to bring to a town-wide vote in 

November 2020.  

 

BACKGROUND 

The Village of Essex Junction is an incorporated municipality within the Town of Essex. Since 

2013, the Village and Town have shared one manager and have been consolidating some 

municipal departments. The Trustees and Selectboard have identified November 2020 as the 

time to have the entire community vote on whether or not to change the governing structure in 

the Village and Town. The date was chosen in part because of the national presidential election, 

which is expected to result in high voter turnout.  

 



 

2 
 

A Governance Subcommittee of the two boards has met regularly since July 2018, and recently 

presented the full boards with three preferred options for governance change. The Village and 

the Town have also hired an attorney to provide legal guidance about governance topics.  

 

Prior to holding a vote in November 2020, the Trustees and Selectboard want to conduct a 

comprehensive engagement process throughout the entire community in order for residents to 

learn about the vote, review options for governance, and help craft and select the preferred 

option.  

 

The Governance Subcommittee has identified a variety of engagement options for consideration, 

including but not limited to a town-wide survey mailed to each home, a series of facilitated 

public meetings, explanatory documents, a public web page, the use of other online resources 

(such as PlaceSpeak) for additional survey and feedback opportunities, and neighborhood 

conversations.  

 

The facilitator(s) will work with a Steering Committee to create and execute the engagement 

plan.  

 

The Trustees and Selectboard would like the entire engagement process, including a report of 

findings, to be completed by November 1, 2019. The facilitator(s) should be prepared to present 

the final report at a joint Trustee and Selectboard meeting shortly after the completion of the 

project.  

 

For more information about the governance change proposals, please visit 

https://www.essexjunction.org/boards/governance-subcommittee/ or 

https://www.essex.org/governancesubcommittee.  

 

Scope of Work 
1. Work with Steering Committee to create a comprehensive public engagement plan.  

2. Finalize the public engagement plan with the Trustees and Selectboard. 

3. Conduct the engagement plan and solicit input to find the public’s preferred governance 

change option. 

4. Produce a report that presents findings and recommends a single governance change 

option. The report should provide justification for the recommendation. The report must 

be submitted in two forms: an electronic copy and an unbound, printed copy.  

5. Present and discuss the report to the Trustees and Selectboard at a joint meeting of the 

boards. 

 

Budget 
Up to $14,000.  

 

Proposal Requirements 

All proposals must include the following information.  

 

1. Facilitator(s) name, address, telephone number, and email; 

2. A brief description of the facilitator’s background and experience; 

https://www.essexjunction.org/boards/governance-subcommittee/
https://www.essex.org/governancesubcommittee


 

3 
 

3. A list of recent public engagement projects, with two to three references; 

4. A detailed and comprehensive, town-wide engagement plan; 

5. A proposed timeline for the entire process, including a final presentation to the Trustees 

Selectboard; 

6. A detailed budget for the scope of work; 

7. A statement as to why the Trustees and Selectboard should select you. 

 

Submittal process 
Proposals must be received by the Unified Manager’s Office by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, April 26, 

2019. Proposals can be emailed to gduggan@essex.org or mailed to the Town and Village 

Unified Manager’s Office, ATTN: Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager, 81 Main St., Essex Junction, 

VT 05452.  

 

Selection/Negotiation Process 

The Trustees and Selectboard will select their top candidate on the basis of the evaluation criteria 

(attached). A contract will be entered into once terms have been agreed to by both sides. 

 

Contact 
Questions about this request for proposals may be directed to Deputy Manager Greg Duggan at 

802-878-1341 or gduggan@essex.org.  

 

  

mailto:gduggan@essex.org
mailto:gduggan@essex.org


 

4 
 

Criteria for Selection 

The following criteria, as a minimum, will be used to evaluate the proposals: 

Review Criteria Weight 
Maximum 

Points 
Weighted 

Points 

Understanding of the Project 3 5 15 

Qualifications / Experience of facilitator(s) 4 5 20 

Quality of the engagement plan 5 5 25 

Timeline and budget 2 5 10 

Past Performance on Similar Projects 4 5 20 

Distinguishing qualifications 2 5 10 

TOTAL   100 

 



Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 

Cc: Sarah Macy, Finance Director/Assistant Village Manager 

From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager 

Re: Continuation of Governance Subcommittee 

Date: April 4, 2019 

Issue  
The issue is whether the Trustees and Selectboard will continue to use a Governance 

Subcommittee, and if so, how the subcommittee should continue its work.  

 

Discussion  
The Trustees and Selectboard created a Governance Subcommittee to focus on issues of 

governance in the Village of Essex Junction and Town of Essex. The subcommittee recently 

completed a report with recommendations about governance options.  

 

The membership of the subcommittee is also changing. Members had consisted of George Tyler 

and Elaine Haney from the Trustees, and Max Levy and Irene Wrenner from the Selectboard. 

Ms. Haney is no longer on the Board of Trustees, and Ms. Wrenner is no longer on the 

Selectboard.  

 

Cost  
None.  

 

Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Trustees and Selectboard decide if and how the Governance 

Subcommittee should continue its work.  



Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager  

Cc: Alignment Committee 

From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager; Sarah Macy, Assistant Village Manager/Finance

 Director  

Re: Organizing a joint board strategic work session  

Date: April 4, 2019 

Issue  
The issue is whether the Trustees and Selectboard will hold a strategic work session about how 

to best manage two organizations and prepare for a November 2020 vote on governance; and 

whether the boards will authorize the Unified Manager to hire a facilitator for the event.  

 

Discussion  
As the Trustees and Selectboard continue to govern interconnected organizations overseen by a 

unified manager, it will be important to set clear legislative goals and priorities for board and 

staff work. In addition to normal, everyday work, administration and staff are figuring out how to 

best serve two boards, which at times have different cultures, expectations, and timelines of how 

to handle municipal operations and planning. Work – for the boards and staff – is also happening 

under the expectation of a November 2020 vote on governance; goal-setting and direction from 

the boards will be crucial to remain productive and focused on priorities.  

 

Staff suggests that the boards hold a strategic work session for several hours on a Saturday in 

June. A date in June will allow enough time to prepare for the work session without delaying the 

meeting too far into the summer. Agenda items could include, but are not limited to:  

 

 Brief presentations from department heads explaining how ongoing and potential work 

towards alignment, consolidation, and potential merger affects their departments and 

operations 

 Discussion about board expectations of administration, including cultural differences that 

influence expectations (policies, procedures, decision-making, etc.) 

 Authority of boards and authority of administration and staff 

o Purchasing limits 

o Is there a role or need for board subcommittees on Finance/Budgeting, 

Communications, etc.  

 Breakout sessions for Selectboard and Trustee individual goal-setting 

 Goals and priorities for work in 2019 and 2020 (e.g., co-locations, tax equity planning, 

policy alignment, communications planning, capital planning and budgeting, etc.) 

 Current and future roles of municipal space (e.g., 2 Lincoln Street, 81 Main Street, 

department locations and co-locations) 

 Discussion about governance options 

o Public engagement plan 

o Further defining the identities of “the Village of Essex Junction” and “the Town 

of Essex,” and how that informs what can or should change or remain in place 

with any governance changes 

 

Breakfast and lunch would be included in the agenda.  



 

If the boards agree to a strategic work session, staff proposes any of the following Saturdays, 

with a meeting time of 8 a.m. to 3 p.m.: June 1, 15, or 22. 

 

Once the board selects a date, staff can find a meeting space. Possible locations include the Basin 

Harbor Club, Bolton Valley Resort, and the Grand Isle Lake House.  

 

Cost  
It is estimated to cost $2,500 for a meeting space and food, and $1,000 - $2,000 for a facilitator.  

 

Recommendation  
It is recommended that the Trustees/Selectboard choose a date for a strategic work session about 

how to best manage two organizations and prepare for a November 2020 vote on governance.  

 

It is also recommended that the Trustees/Selectboard authorize the Unified Manager to hire a 

facilitator for the event.  



Memorandum 

 

TO: Evan Teich, Unified Manager  

        Selectboard 

        Trustees 

FROM:  Dennis Lutz, P.E., Public Works Director 

              Ricky Jones, Village Public Works Superintendent 

DATE: 19 March 2019 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Report entitled “Assessment of Critical Non‐Compliant Sidewalks, 

Paths and Crossings” 

 

ISSUE: The issue is whether or not to accept the report entitled “Assessment of Critical Non‐

Compliant Sidewalks, Paths and Crossings”, by the CCRPC and the Toole Design Group. 

 

DISCUSSION:   The Town and Village contracted through the Chittenden County Regional 

Planning Commission to hire a consultant under their Unified Work Planning Program to study 

sidewalk, paths and road crossings from the impact of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(referred to as ADA).  The firm, Toole Design Group, was hired to perform this study. 

 

The background to this work is that the Town has twice attempted to secure funds for ADA 

correction at a number of intersections throughout the Town through VTRANs grants.  Neither 

attempt has been successful.  A copy of the grant application last submitted in 2016 is attached 

for reference.  The hope was and is that a scoping‐type study performed by an impartial third 

party might provide the basis for a successful future grant.  

 

The cost to perform the needed infrastructure improvements is very high and would require a 

substantial investment by the Town and the Village to correct every sidewalk, path or crossing 

deficiency. For example, a ¼ inch difference in adjacent sidewalk panels indicates a deficiency. 

With Vermont winters and recurring freeze‐thaw cycles, this standard is very difficult to achieve 

and maintain. 

 

Another objective of the study was to identify priority improvements in areas where there is 

the greatest need/impact.  The report identifies the standards and has provided guidance as to 

which locations should be prioritized before others. 

 

It is recognized that the report was completed in 2018 and is only now being submitted for 

acceptance.   Throughout last summer and into the winter, work effort of staff was directed 

towards alignment, budget format changes, school busing issues, processing and developing of 

active grants, building studies, storm water compliance with new permits and many other 



pressing issues. While the report was not submitted for acceptance, the report was reviewed 

and ADA improvements were made or planned for this summer based on the report. The 

content of the report is currently being used. 

 

A question may arise as to why the report is requested for acceptance and not approval.  

Historically, accepting a report means that the report is acknowledged as completed and allows 

staff to implement recommendations as applicable.  Approval implies that the findings of the 

report will be followed as written or described.  The report being considered contains an 

extensive amount of useful information but not all recommendations can or should be followed 

as described in the report. One example of this is the sketch provided on page 10 for the 

intersection of Essex Way and VT 15. While the sketch provides an ADA improvement at the 

location, the stop bar for traffic must be placed prior to the crossing and this places the stop bar 

too far back from this heavily travelled intersection.  In addition, recent signal changes have 

moved the signal poles.  While the identification of the intersection crossing is a valid issue, the 

report figure is not a preferred configuration by Public Works, considering all factors.  It is for 

examples like this that the report is being requested for acceptance and not approval. 

 

The report is only one element in an overall long‐term plan that needs to be developed by staff 

and approved by the elected officials regarding the topic of ADA compliance on sidewalks, 

paths and crosswalks. There are both short‐term inexpensive operational issues and longer 

term, costly improvements that need to be further prioritized and developed into a multi‐year 

plan.  Once deficiencies are identified, improvements need to be made but all improvements 

cannot be made in the short term given the reality of the funding that will be required. 

 

The grinding of sidewalks where adjacent sidewalks have a significant height offset or 

replacement of specific sidewalks with extreme differential settlement often falls under normal 

maintenance and operational concerns.  However, more significant issues need not only to be 

identified, as in the report, but also cost‐ estimated and prioritized in a formally adopted plan.  

It may be that the work has to be identified as a separate category for incorporation in the 

Capital Plan and funds identified to actually construct the projects on the priority list. 

 

It is the staff’s intent to develop a five‐year priority list of ADA related improvements with 

estimated yearly costs during early FYE20 for use in budget development considerations for 

FYE21.  In the interim, ADA improvements will be made using available funds against priority 

locations as noted in the report and in previous analyses.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that the Selectboard and the Trustees accept the 

report by the CCRPC and Toole Design Group entitled “Assessment of Critical Non‐Compliant 

Sidewalks, Paths and Crossings” and direct staff to utilize the report to develop a five year‐

municipal plan in the Village and in the Town to address the ADA issues as they impact on 

sidewalks, paths and crossings. 



Memorandum 

To: Trustees; Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 

From: Travis Sabataso, HR Director 

Re: Safety Committee Policy 

Date: April 4, 2019 

Issue 

The issue is whether the Selectboard and the Trustees will adopt the Town of Essex/Village of 

Essex Junction Safety Committee Policy. 

Discussion 

The draft Safety Committee Policy for the Town of Essex/Village of Essex Junction was crafted 

by combining the Vermont League of Cities and Towns Model Policy and the current Village 

Safety Committee Policy. The enclosed policy has been reviewed and accepted by the Joint 

Safety Committee. Feedback from the committee members and their respective departments has 

been incorporated. The policy has also been reviewed and accepted by both the Selectboard and 

the Trustees. 

Cost 

There is no cost associated with this issue. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Selectboard and the Trustees adopt the Joint Safety Committee 

Policy. 



 
  
Mission: The Town of Essex and the Village of Essex Junction Joint Safety Committee will work 
to assess, monitor and improve safe working conditions at the two municipalities. Their The 
Committee’s work will be performed with the support of the Town of Essex Selectboard and the 
Village of Essex Junction Trustees, who recognize the valuable role that employees can play in 
safety program management. Furthermore, leadership commits to implement those sSafety 
cCommittee recommendations that are both economically feasible, departmentally feasible, and 
will truly have an impact on reducing injury frequency and severity. The Town and the Village are 
committed to providing services in a manner that minimizes workplace hazards and enhances 
workplace safety to the maximum extent possible with the need to serve the public and provide 
needed municipal services, and in doing so comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations 
of the state and federal government relating to occupational safety and health. 
 
Membership:  The sSafety cCommittee shall be composed of a minimum of one representative 
from each of the following: 
 

1. Either Essex Parks and Recreation or Essex Junction Recreation and Parks 
2. Either Brownell Library or Essex Free Library 
3. 2 Lincoln Street 
4. 81 Main Street 
5. Town Public Works 
6. Village Public Works 
7. Police 
8. Either Town Fire or Village Fire 
9. Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
Department heads shall be responsible for appointing the cCommittee’s representatives. The 
chosen representativesdepartment head shall appoint one alternate who will attend meetings in 
their absence. The cCommittee shall appoint its own chair, minute’s taker, and time-keeper, and 
shall meet at least once every three months. 
 
Responsibility/Tasks: 
 

1. Bring to the appropriate department head and/or the Unified Manager any safety -related 
concerns and recommendations for improvement. 

 
2. Conduct periodic safety inspections of Town and Village facilities and report any safety 

violations to the department head and/or Unified Manager. 

Safety Committee Policy 
Revision Number: Town of Essex Selectboard 

24.0 Adopted on: TBD 
Revision Date:   

42/4/2019 Village of Essex Junction Trustees 
Effective Date: Adopted on: TBD 

TBD(once adopted)   



3. Recommend, review, and help draft departmental and organization-wide safety policies, 
practices and procedures for consideration by department heads and/or the Unified 
Manager. For departmental policy and procedure changes the sSafety cCommittee rep from 
the respective department shall work with the department head on changes. 
 

4. Keep up to date the Town and Village Safety Manuals. 
 

5. Organize departmental and/or organization-wide safety trainings with the approval of the 
department head and/or Unified Manager. 
 

6. Set an example for workplace safety. Advise other employees when they are violating 
safety policies and procedures. Report the unsafe activities to the department head and/or 
Unified Manager. 
 

7. Manage the Town- and Village- wide safety data sheet program. 
 

8. Other duties may be assigned or approved by the Unified Manager. 
 
Communication/Planning:  Meeting minutes (from the previous meeting) will be approved at 
each meeting and disseminated to employees in a manor manner accessible by all staff.  
 
Hazards, recommendations, etc., will be tracked or otherwise incorporated into the monthly 
minutes to ensure that items are corrected in a timely manner. Safety committee members are 
encouraged to solicit suggestions for preventing injuries from their co-workers and to raise these 
issues in cCommittee meetings to enhance employee involvement. Committee members will also 
serve as safety ambassadors, bringing employee safety concerns to the cCommittee.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the Selectboard of the Town of Essex, Vermont, this 
___ day of _____________ and is effective as of this date until amended or repealed. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Elaine Haney, Chair                                              

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

       Annie Cooper 

_______________________________________ 

Max G. Levy, Vice Chair                                

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

       Andrew J. Watts 

_______________________________________ 

Patrick Murray, Clerk  

       

The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the Trustees of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, 
this ___ day of _____________ and is effective as of this date until amended or repealed. 

 

 

_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 

George A. Tyler, President    Daniel S. Kerin 

        

 

_____________________________________       ___________________________________ 

Lori A. Houghton     Andrew P. Brown, Vice President  

 

 
 
 



 
  
Mission: The Town of Essex and the Village of Essex Junction Joint Safety Committee will work 
to assess, monitor and improve safe working conditions at the two municipalities. The 
Committee’s work will be performed with the support of the Town of Essex Selectboard and the 
Village of Essex Junction Trustees, who recognize the valuable role that employees can play in 
safety program management. Furthermore, leadership commits to implement those Safety 
Committee recommendations that are both economically feasible, departmentally feasible, and 
will truly have an impact on reducing injury frequency and severity. The Town and the Village are 
committed to providing services in a manner that minimizes workplace hazards and enhances 
workplace safety to the maximum extent possible with the need to serve the public and provide 
needed municipal services, and in doing so comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations 
of the state and federal government relating to occupational safety and health. 
 
Membership:  The Safety Committee shall be composed of a minimum of one representative from 
each of the following: 
 

1. Either Essex Parks and Recreation or Essex Junction Recreation and Parks 
2. Either Brownell Library or Essex Free Library 
3. 2 Lincoln Street 
4. 81 Main Street 
5. Town Public Works 
6. Village Public Works 
7. Police 
8. Either Town Fire or Village Fire 
9. Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 
Department heads shall be responsible for appointing the Committee’s representatives. The 
department head shall appoint one alternate who will attend meetings in their absence. The 
Committee shall appoint its own chair, minutes taker, and time-keeper, and shall meet at least once 
every three months. 
 
Responsibility/Tasks: 
 

1. Bring to the appropriate department head and/or the Unified Manager any safety-related 
concerns and recommendations for improvement. 

 
2. Conduct periodic safety inspections of Town and Village facilities and report any safety 

violations to the department head and/or Unified Manager. 

Safety Committee Policy 
Revision Number: Town of Essex Selectboard 

4.0 Adopted on: TBD 
Revision Date:   

4/4/2019 Village of Essex Junction Trustees 
Effective Date: Adopted on: TBD 

TBD(once adopted)   



3. Recommend, review, and help draft departmental and organization-wide safety policies, 
practices and procedures for consideration by department heads and/or the Unified 
Manager. For departmental policy and procedure changes the Safety Committee rep from 
the respective department shall work with the department head on changes. 
 

4. Keep up to date the Town and Village Safety Manuals. 
 

5. Organize departmental and/or organization-wide safety trainings with the approval of the 
department head and/or Unified Manager. 
 

6. Set an example for workplace safety. Advise other employees when they are violating 
safety policies and procedures. Report the unsafe activities to the department head and/or 
Unified Manager. 
 

7. Manage the Town- and Village-wide safety data sheet program. 
 

8. Other duties may be assigned or approved by the Unified Manager. 
 
Communication/Planning:  Meeting minutes (from the previous meeting) will be approved at 
each meeting and disseminated to employees in a manner accessible by all staff.  
 
Hazards, recommendations, etc. will be tracked or otherwise incorporated into the monthly 
minutes to ensure that items are corrected in a timely manner. Safety committee members are 
encouraged to solicit suggestions for preventing injuries from their co-workers and to raise these 
issues in Committee meetings to enhance employee involvement. Committee members will also 
serve as safety ambassadors, bringing employee safety concerns to the Committee.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the Selectboard of the Town of Essex, Vermont, this 
___ day of _____________ and is effective as of this date until amended or repealed. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Elaine Haney, Chair                                              

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

       Annie Cooper 

_______________________________________ 

Max G. Levy, Vice Chair                                

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

       Andrew J. Watts 

_______________________________________ 

Patrick Murray, Clerk  

       

The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the Trustees of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, 
this ___ day of _____________ and is effective as of this date until amended or repealed. 

 

_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 

George A. Tyler, President    Daniel S. Kerin 

        

 

_____________________________________       ___________________________________ 

Lori A. Houghton     Andrew P. Brown, Vice President  

 

 
 
 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

1

 

 

1 TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
2 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
3 Monday, February 6, 2019 
4 
5 SELECTBOARD: Max Levy; Michael Plageman; Elaine Haney; Andrew Watts; Irene 
6 Wrenner. 
7 
8 TRUSTEES: George Tyler; Lori Houghton (by call-in); Dan Kerin; Elaine Haney. 
9 Andrew Brown was not in attendance. 

10 
11 ADMINISTRATION: Evan Teich, Unified Manager; Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager; 
12 Sarah Macy Finance Director; Rob Paluba, IT Director; Susan McNamara-Hill, Town Clerk 
13 
14 OTHERS PRESENT: John Alden, Village Planning Commission; Dustin Brusso, Town 
15 Planning Commission Margaret Smith; Brande Peters; Andy Suntup; Paul Hansen; 
16 
17 
18 1. CALL TO ORDER/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
19 Mr. Levy and Mr. Tyler called the special Joint Meeting of the Town of Essex Selectboard 
20 and the Village of Essex Junction Trustees to order at 7:00PM. They invited all in attendance 
21 to rise and join in the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
22 
23 2.   AGENDA ADDITIONS/ CHANGES 
24 Mr. Teich provided two additions to the agenda: minutes, for the Trustees to approve, from 
25 the joint meeting of December 18th, as an addition to item 5g, and a Q&A on Governance to 
26 be added to item 6b. 
27 
28 3.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
29 
30 Dan Kerin moved, and Elaine Haney seconded, that the Trustees approve the agenda, with 
31 additions. The motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent). 
32 
33 Michael Plageman moved, and Irene Wrenner seconded, that the Selectboard approve the 
34 agenda, with additions. The motion passed 5-0. 
35 
36 4.   PUBLIC TO BE HEARD 
37 
38 a.   Comments from Public on Items Not on Agenda 
39 Brande Peters requested that the Essex municipalities consider being her fiscal sponsor for a 
40 $10,000 grant, due the following day, to the Vermont Community Foundation or the 
41 Vermont Women’s Fund. She described various ways she thought the grant opportunity’s 
42 guidelines might connect to municipality interests, including promoting viable careers, non- 
43 pregnancy issues, economic services for low income women, economic vitality, Route 15 
44 land use, fresh air, clean outhouses or community care packages. Ms. Haney, Mr. Tyler and 
45 Mr. Kerin suggested that she leave a copy of her application with staff, along with her 
46 contact information, and that she connect with Mr. Teich the next day. 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

2

 

 

47 
48 5.   BUSINESS ITEMS 
49 
50 a.   Discussion of shared website for Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction—Rob 
51 Paluba 
52 Mr. Paluba explained the IT department’s process for selecting a vendor to host a shared 
53 website for the Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction. He said a committee of staff 
54 determined selection criteria and identified four top vendor candidates, with CivicPlus as the 
55 committee’s top choice. Mr. Paluba said CivicPlus stood out because of its extensive 
56 experience working with municipalities and because of the company’s configurable module 
57 options so Essex can to personalize the site to meet their specific website needs. He also 
58 discussed the system’s security, social media compatibility and outreach functions for 
59 emergency broadcasting. 
60 
61 Mr. Paluba explained that development and deployment of the new website will cost $33,100 
62 and, through this phase, IT will work with a CivicPlus project team. Annualized expenses, 
63 thereafter, will be $1,174 more than Essex’s current spending on website services. Mr. 
64 Paluba is planning to conduct demos of the new website in June and that the site will launch 
65 toward the end of September. He said the website will have a Landing/Home page, a Town 
66 page, and a Village page, and one more main page which could be used for for recreation or 
67 as a joint Town and Village page. Mr. Paluba pointed out that, when the new website goes 
68 live, thirteen of the fourteen websites currently managed by the municipalities will be 
69 discontinued, but their domains will still be owned by the municipalities. The only exclusion 
70 to this is the Brownell Library page, who will continue using their own new website. 
71 
72 Mr. Tyler, Mr. Levy, Ms. Haney and Ms. Houghton explained specific website functionality 
73 important to them, including: a front-end that encourages two-way communication and 
74 connects directly with Essex events, news and opportunities for public input; a mobile app 
75 option; water bill and tax payment options; Channel 17 compatibility; the same or better 
76 analytics; public records requests monitoring; clarity of communications and buttons; and 
77 document storage/ document history capability. The Village Trustees described collaboration 
78 between staff and the Trustees, when their current website was designed. They encouraged 
79 IT to work with them in a similar fashion while designing the new website. Mr. Paluba said 
80 the workgroup will provide regular updates in the Selectboard and Trustees’ reading files, 
81 and Mr. Teich said he would include Village Trustees in website development conversations. 
82 
83 b.   Approval of draft timeline for merger vote—Max Levy & George Tyler 
84 Mr. Tyler suggested that the Trustees and Selectboard members establish a November 2020 
85 deadline for a governance change question to be on the ballot for voters. Ms. McNamara-Hill 
86 clarified that the question would need to be finalized by the middle of August 2020, in order 
87 to ensure it is on the ballot, through the state of Vermont. She discussed legal statutes and 
88 procedures involved with merging the municipalities. Ms. McNamara-Hill and Mr. Watts 
89 pointed out variations in statutes, based on what governance structure is chosen and protocol 
90 differences for Villages and Towns. Ms. Haney wondered if there could be sub-questions on 
91 the ballot. Ms. McNamara-Hill said that all decisions need to be arranged with legal counsel, 
92 to ensure adherence with requirements for public hearings, warnings, which sections of the 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

3

 

 

93 population needs to vote, how the votes should take place, how the question is worded on 
94 ballot, etc. Mr. Tyler and Mr. Levy pointed out that, if merger details are not worked out in 
95 time for the November deadline, the Selectboard members and Trustees can aim for a later 
96 date for a vote on governance. 
97 
98 The Selectboard and Trustees discussed the pros and cons of a November 2020 deadline. Ms. 
99 Haney proposed that the Selectboard and Trustees review progress in May 2020, to see if the 

100 goal is still achievable. Ms. Wrenner pointed out that, even though there will be a large 
101 turnout for the November 2020 election, getting information out to voters about the 
102 governance question may be challenging. Ms. Haney pointed out that including the question 
103 on the November ballot will ensure people do not miss their opportunity to vote. 
104  
105 Mr. Tyler opened the discussion to public comment. Ms. Smith agreed that getting 
106 governance change information out to voters during the 2020 election will be a challenge. 
107 Mr. Suntup requested verification that an early voter option will be available. Ms. 
108 McNamara-Hill confirmed that early voting would be an option because the question would 
109 be on the ballot. 
110  
111 Mr. Tyler moved, and Ms. Haney seconded, that the Trustees work with the Selectboard to 
112 develop a governance change proposal for voter approval in November 2020. The motion 
113 passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent). 
114  
115 Michael Plageman moved, and Andy Watts seconded, that the Selectboard work with the 
116 Trustees to develop a governance change proposal for voter approval in November 2020. 
117 The motion passed 5-0. 
118  
119 c.   Review of Governance Subcommittee final report and discussion of next steps—George 
120 Tyler 
121 Mr. Tyler opened a discussion with Selectboard members and Trustees to determine whether 
122 there is continued support for the Governance Committee to focus on and guide work 
123 involved with governance change. He shared his opinion that the joint meetings of the 
124 Trustees and Selectboard are not ideal venues for moving the governance issue forward, due 
125 to their consistently full agendas. Mr. Plageman and Ms. Wrenner agreed with his opinion. 
126 Mr. Levy and Ms. Haney suggested that the subcommittee develop a timeline, now that there 
127 is a vote date in place, and condense the report they developed so it can be to be discussed at 
128 the next Joint Meeting. They also discussed the pros and cons of possibly reconstituting the 
129 subcommittee after April elections. Mr. Kerin voiced his support of the subcommittee model 
130 as a way to mobilize public outreach on the topic of governance change. Mr. Kerin, Mr. 
131 Plageman and Ms. Haney commended the subcommittee’s work to date, which resulted in a 
132 menu of options for the Selectboard and the Trustees to consider, all vetted by legal counsel. 
133  
134 Mr. Watts said that the subcommittee did not conduct their work as he had expected it would 
135 be done, and proposed the governance change efforts take place at the joint meetings, not in a 
136 subcommittee. He also suggested that governance planning meetings be warned as 
137 Selectboard meetings, to promote greater inclusion. Mr. Tyler noted that consult with legal 
138 counsels indicated the subcommittee meetings do not need to be warned, but any of the 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

4

 

 

139 Trustees and Selectboard members can attend them and participate in the discussions. Ms. 
140 Wrenner, Ms. Macy and Ms. Houghton discussed how the Selectboard, Trustee and joint 
141 meetings may need to be take place differently in the future, based on the changing dynamics 
142 of the municipalities. 
143  
144 The Trustees and Selectboard, agreed that the subcommittee should meet in March to 
145 produce a governance change timeline for the upcoming year and to condense the report so it 
146 is ready to be discussed at the next Joint Meeting on April 10th. 
147  
148 d.   Support for collaborative planning between Town and Village Planning Commissions 
149 Mr. Tyler presented the question of  Board support for formal, collaborative planning efforts 
150 between the Town and Village Planning commissions. He invited Mr. Brusso and Mr. Alden 
151 to discuss their collaborative process. Mr. Brusso said that their goal is to work toward the 
152 creation of a single Planning Commission, but first explore ways to collaborate and align. 
153 Mr. Duggan explained the legal limitations/ nuances of how the Planning Commissions 
154 collaborate, according to municipality statutes. Mr. Brusso said that the two commissions 
155 began dedicating every other month of their meeting schedules as “joint planning 
156 workshops”.  He expressed that this format has been beneficial and commissions have 
157 identified a series of workshop topics to address. He also pointed out that, in this 
158 arrangement, ex-officious are not required and those who attend are “visiting members”. Mr. 
159 Tyler and Mr. Kerin said the commissions should consider going on a retreat to begin putting 
160 together their ideas. Ms. Haney suggested that the Planning Commissions, the Selectboard 
161 and the Trustees all meet together on some of the topic areas they are discussing. All 
162 members of the Selectboard and the Trustees agreed that they support the efforts of the 
163 Planning Commissions to define and normalize alignment and collaboration practices. 
164  
165 e.   *Evaluation of Unified Manager on 2018 goals—Max Levy & George Tyler 
166 Mr. Levy proposed that the Selectboard and Trustees evaluate the Unified Manager on the 
167 Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant and Time Constrained (SMART) goals included 
168 in his contract for 2018. Input from Mr. Teich about his efforts toward these goals, along 
169 with feedback from others on his performance, were collected and summarized for review. 
170 Mr. Levy proposed that the Trustees and Selectboard members go into executive session, as 
171 item 7a, to review the summery, determine Mr. Teich’s accomplishment of the 2018 SMART 
172 goals and decide whether he is eligible for a bonus of up to $3,000, as per his contract. 
173  
174 f. Determine 2019 goals for Unified Manager—Evan Teich 
175 Mr. Levy  introduced the issue of setting SMART goals for the Unified Manager for 2019. 
176 He explained that the Village President and Selectboard Chair compiled and synthesized a 
177 list of suggested goals, provided by Selectboard members and Trustees. Their proposed 
178 SMART goals included: 
179  Ensure periodic, one-on-one, communication and interaction with department 
180 heads,particularly before any policy changes that might affect their jobs. Don’t allow the 
181 management organizational structure to impede good working relations with staff. 
182  When speaking in public make sure you and staff use consistent, inclusive, mutually 
183 agreed upon Language. For example, don’t use the term ‘town’ without specifying 
184 whether this refers to ‘town-wide’ or ‘town within the village.’ 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

5

 

 

185  Consult with interested board members and staff to develop a communication strategy 
186 across multiple platforms, including Facebook and other relevant social media, and 
187 incorporating the potential to effectively disseminate accurate information about merger 
188 and other town-wide issues. 
189  Initiate a process for all Town and Village Departments to develop a five-year strategic 
190 plan. This effort should be driven by department heads working in collaboration with 
191 administrative staff. 
192  Develop an aligned and consistent process for hiring staff and onboarding new staff and 
193 new appointees of standing committees. 
194  
195 The Selectboard members and the Trustees determined that a new, better method of 
196 establishing the Unified Manager’s SMART goals should be planned for future evaluations. 
197 Mr. Kerin suggested that they consider, in the future, measuring the Unified Manager’s 
198 progress semiannually. Ms. Houghton suggested that the 2019 SMART goals be determined 
199 as one goal specific to the Village of Essex Junction, one specific to Essex Town and one 
200 joint goal. Mr. Kerin, Ms. Haney and Ms. Wrenner discussed the challenges and nuances of 
201 measuring the goals proposed by the Village President and Selectboard Chair. In 
202 consideration of this, it was decided to eliminate the goal written as bullet number two. 
203  
204 George Tyler moved, and Elaine Haney seconded, that the Trustees assign goals 1, 3, 4, and 
205 5, recommended by the two board chairs, with the correction on goal number 3 to replace 
206 “Facebook and other relevant social media” with just “social media”. The motion passed 3- 
207 1. Roll call: George Tyler, yes; Elaine Haney, yes; Dan Kerin, yes; Ms. Houghton, No; 
208 Andrew Brown absent. 
209  
210 Ms. Houghton reiterated that she wanted to see the group choose one Village goal, one Town 
211 goal and a joint goal. 
212  
213 Michael Plageman moved, and Andy Watts seconded, that the Selectboard assign goals 1, 
214 3, 4, and 5, recommended by the two board chairs, with the correction on goal number 3 to 
215 replace “Facebook and other relevant social media” with just “social media”. 
216  
217 Ms. Wrenner said that the goal written as bullet number two was important to include in the 
218 SMART goals, and she sees it as measurable. 
219  
220 The motion passed 4-1, with dissenting vote from Irene Wrenner. 
221  
222 g.   Approval of Minutes:  December 5, 2019 (Trustees only) 
223  
224 George Tyler moved, and Dan Kerin seconded, that the Trustees approve the Trustee and 
225 Selectboard special meeting of December 18, 2018 minutes, without correction. 
226 The motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent). 
227  



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

6

 

 

228 George Tyler moved, and Dan Kerin seconded, that the Trustees approve the Joint meeting 
229 of the Essex Selectboard and Essex Junction Trustees’ minutes from the meeting of 
230 December 5, 2018, without correction. The motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent). 
231  
232 6.   READING FILE 
233 a.   Board Member Comments 
234  Ms. Wrenner said she is unable to go to the Saturday 2/9/19 hockey game to conduct 
235 outreach, and Mr. Plageman said he would attend in her stead. 
236  Ms. Wrenner attended a Voices for Education meeting and has a packet of information 
237 for the boards that she will add to the next meeting’s reading file. 
238 b.   Q&A info sheet re: Update on Governance of Essex and Essex Junction upcoming 
239 Meeting Schedule and Events 
240 Mr. Levy introduced the Governance info sheet, to be used for public outreach, and requested 
241 that the Selectboard and Trustees approve its content, before it is distributed. Ms. Wrenner 
242 provided a spelling correction and all other revisions will be provided to Mr. Duggan. 
243  
244 7.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
245  
246 a.   *An executive session is expected for evaluation of a public employee 
247  
248 Andy Watts moved, and Irene Wrenner seconded, that the Selectboard enter into executive 
249 session to discuss the evaluation of an employee in accordance with 1. V.S.A. Section 313 
250 (a)(3), to include the Village of Essex Junction Trustees and the Unified Manager. The 
251 motion passed 5-0. 
252  
253 George Tyler moved, and Elaine Haney seconded, that the Trustees enter into executive 
254 session to discuss the evaluation of an employee in accordance with 1. V.S.A. Section 313 
255 (a)(3), to include the Unified Manager and the Essex Town Selectboard. The motion passed 
256 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent). 
257  
258 Michael Plageman moved, and Irene Wrenner seconded, that the Selectboard exit 
259 executive session. The motion passed 5-0 at 8:45 p.m. 
260  
261 George Tyler moved, and Elaine Haney seconded,  that the Village Trustees exit executive 
262 session.  The motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent) at 8:45 p.m. 
263  
264 Irene Wrenner moved, and Michael Plageman seconded, that the Selectboard approve 
265 awarding Evan the full $3,000 bonus for successfully achieving 2018 goals. The motion 
266 passed 5-0. 
267  
268 George Tyler moved, and Dan Kerin seconded, that the Trustees award Evan Teich the 
269 maximum $3,000 performance bonus for satisfactorily achieving the mutually agreed upon 
270 goals as warranted under the manager's contract. The motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown 
271 absent). 
272  
273 8.  ADJOURN 



TRUSTEE & SELECTBOARD 
(DRAFT) 

FEBRUARY 6, 2019

7

 

 

274  
275 Irene Wrenner moved, and Michael Plageman seconded, that the Selectboard adjourn the 
276 meeting. The motion passed 5-0 at 8:45 p.m. 
277  
278 Dan Kerin moved, and George Tyler seconded, that the Trustees adjourn the meeting. The 
279 motion passed 4-0 (Andrew Brown absent) at 8:45 p.m. 
280  
281  
282  
283 Respectfully Submitted, 
284 Cathy Ainsworth 
285 Recording Secretary 



Memorandum 

 

TO: Evan Teich, Unified Manager 

        Selectboard 

       Trustees 

FROM: Dennis Lutz, P.E., Public Works Director 

DATE: 2 April 2019 

SUBJECT:  Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC) Unified Planning Work 

Program (UPWP) for FYE2020 

 

Great news!  Through the hard work of staff ‐‐ Annie Costandi, Dan Gregoire and Chelsea 

Mandigo ‐‐ three Essex UPWP Projects are on the approved list going forward for approval by 

the CCRPC. The attached document lists those projects under items 7 through 9.  They are: 

 

1) Essex Storm Water CCTV Inspection 

2) Tanglewood Drive Shared Use Path and  Storm Water Scoping Project 

3) Essex Junction Storm Water CCTV Inspection 

It is anticipated that the projects will have funding available after 1 July 2019 and there is a 20% 

local match. The total estimated cost is $129,000 and the local share is 20% or $25,800. The 

funds will come either from the storm water operating accounts or the joint storm water capital 

account or some combination thereof. 

These projects are greatly needed.  Although they will consume staff time to manage, the effort 

will result in identifying infrastructure deficiencies and needs for future improvement. 

 

 

 

 










	00 Joint Agenda 20190409
	5a Discussion about unified website
	memo_website 040519
	Mood Board_color scheme
	mood board_home page
	mood board_interior page
	Feedback from Staff Website Redesign Team re template
	Web Questionnaire Dept Heads and Board Members 2019 March
	resident survey DRAFT 040319
	Memorandum Domain Names

	5b Approve schedule future joint board meetings
	memo_2019 meeting schedule 040419
	meeting schedule 2019 options
	040419 Apr May Jun Jul meeting schedule

	5c Discussion and potential selection of preferred Gov options
	memo_governance subcommittee 040419
	Gov Subcommittee Report 4.9.19
	D.Richardson response to Gov.SC.questions.4.9.19

	5d Approve RFP for public engagement
	memo_public outreach coordinator 040519
	RFP_public outreach facilitator 040519

	5e Discussion and potential action on continuation of Gov Subcommittee
	5f Approve date and prepare for joint board strategic work session
	6a Accept ADA sidewalk report
	ADA report memo to Selectboard and Trustees 3-19-2019_gd
	Report on ADA sidewalk, paths and crossings

	6b Adopt Safety Committee Policy
	Safety Committee Policy
	Draft Safety Committee Policy Track Changes
	Draft Safety Committee Policy Clean

	6c Approval of minutes 20190406
	7b Memo from Dennis Lutz re CCRPC UPWP
	memo on UPWP 2020 projects
	scan_dlutz_2019-04-02-15-13-54


